
City of Saginaw
Meeting and/or Executive Session Agenda

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM
333 West McLeroy Boulevard
Saginaw, Texas 76179

In accordance with Section 551.043 of the Texas Government Code, this agenda has been posted at Saginaw City
Hall, and distributed to the appropriate news media within the required time frame. All meetings of the Saginaw
City Council are open to the public. Public participation and written comments are invited on all open session
business items.

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the
audience are requested to step outside to respond to a page or to conduct a phone conversation. The City Hall is
wheelchair accessible and special parking is available on the east side of the building. If special accommodations
are required please contact the City Secretary a minimum of 72 hours in advance at 817-232-4640.

1. Call To Order

1A. Call To Order -- Todd Flippo, Mayor

1B. Pledges--Pledge of Allegiance to the United States; Pledge of Allegiance to the State of Texas--
"Honor the Texas Flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one State under God, one and indivisible"

1C. Invocation--Pastor Ronnie Mills, Saginaw Family Bible Church

1D. Audience Participation--Anyone wishing to speak during the discussion of an item listed on the
agenda must complete an audience participation form. These forms are located by the Police Chief.
After completing the form, give it to the City Secretary. She will give it to the Mayor. The Mayor will
call on you when that item is discussed. You will have three (3) minutes to make your comments.

2. Consent Agenda

All items listed are part of the Consent Agenda. Public hearing and review are held collectively
unless opposition is presented, in which case the contested item will be heard separately.

2A. Action regarding Minutes, January 7, 2025--Janice England, City Secretary

2B. Action regarding Approval for Weaver and Tidwell, LLP to perform the Fiscal Year 2024-2025
Audit--Kim Quin, Finance Director

3. Proclamations-Presentations

3A. Employee Recognitions/Presentations--Gabe Reaume, City Manager

3B. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award--Kim Quin, Finance Director

3C. Presentation of Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended September
30, 2024--Jennifer Ripka, Weaver & Tidwell LLP

4. Business



4A. Consideration and Action Regarding 2025 Bond Committee Project Recommendation--Lee
Howell, Asst. City Manager

4B. Consideration and Action regarding Resolution No. 2025-01, Calling a General Election to Elect
the Offices of City Council Place 1, City Council Place 3, and City Council Place 5 to be held on May
3, 2025--Janice England, City Secretary

4C. Consideration and Action regarding Resolution No. 2025-02, Amending the Code of Conduct
and Rules of Procedure for City Council Meetings by Adopting New Policies Governing the Right of
the Public to Request an Agenda Item and Governing the Right to Speak to the Council via a
Designated Group Representative; Promulgating Guidelines and Recommendations for addressing
the City Council--Paul Felegy, Mayor Pro-Tem; Brack St. Clair, Councilmember; & Cindy Bighorse,
Councilmember

4D. Discussion of 2025 Work Plan Projects--Gabe Reaume, City Manager

5. Executive Session

The City Council may take action on any Executive Session item posted.

5A. 551.071. Texas Government Code. Consultation with Attorney. The City Council may convene in
executive session to conduct a private consultation with its attorney on any legally posted agenda
item, when the City Council seeks the advice of its attorney about pending or contemplated
litigation, a settlement offer, or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly
conflicts with the provisions of Chapter 551, including the following items:

5B. Any Posted Item

5C. Proposed Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs low-income housing unit
application involving 9% Housing Tax Credit Program on behalf of Saginaw Main Apts., LP, relating
to property located at 615 North Saginaw Boulevard

5D. 551.087 Texas Government Code. Deliberation regarding Economic Development Negotiations.
The City Council may convene in executive session to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial
or financial information that the City has received from a business prospect that the City seeks to
have locate, stay, or expand in or near the City and with which the City is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business
prospect described above, including:

5E. 400 S. Saginaw Blvd. and 405 S. Belmont St.

5F. 551.074. Texas Government Code. Personnel Matters. The City Council may convene in
executive session to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an
officer or employee, including deliberation regarding the following officers or employees:

5G. City Secretary

6. Adjournment

6A. Adjournment--Todd Flippo, Mayor



Date Posted: ______________________________  Time: ________________________________ By:
____________________________

Date Retrieved: ___________________________  Time: ________________________________ By:
____________________________

Date Posted: January 16, 2025



City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

A. Action regarding Minutes, January 7, 2025--Janice England, City Secretary

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 2A.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The minutes of the City Council Meeting held on January 7, 2025 are presented for consideration

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval. 

 

Attachments

Draft Minutes, January 7 2025.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67868d6390248a005482aed4%2FDraft%20Minutes%2C%20January%207%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=9116738b-8c21-45ae-a478-f5c4663ec8aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67868d6390248a005482aed4%2FDraft%20Minutes%2C%20January%207%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=9116738b-8c21-45ae-a478-f5c4663ec8aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67868d6390248a005482aed4%2FDraft%20Minutes%2C%20January%207%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=9116738b-8c21-45ae-a478-f5c4663ec8aa












City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

B. Action regarding Approval for Weaver and Tidwell, LLP to perform the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Audit--Kim Quin,
Finance Director

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 2B.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:
After proposals for professional auditing services were evaluated, the City Council approved a contract with Weaver
and Tidwell, LLP on June 18, 2024.  The contract was for a two year period with the option for three one year
extensions. This will be the second year of the initial contract. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The cost of audit will be $62,500 which includes a single audit, required due to the expenditure of American Rescue
Plan Act grant proceeds.

 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends awarding a contract to Weaver and Tidwell for professional auditing services for the fiscal year
ending 2024-2025.

 

Attachments

City of Saginaw 2025 Audit Engagement Letter.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6789176190248a005487000f%2FCity%20of%20Saginaw%202025%20Audit%20Engagement%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=778184b1-f92f-40c2-a3de-2bb30ec6747c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6789176190248a005487000f%2FCity%20of%20Saginaw%202025%20Audit%20Engagement%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=778184b1-f92f-40c2-a3de-2bb30ec6747c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6789176190248a005487000f%2FCity%20of%20Saginaw%202025%20Audit%20Engagement%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=778184b1-f92f-40c2-a3de-2bb30ec6747c


 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. 

CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM 

January 15, 2025 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor,  
Members of City Council, and City Manager of  
City of Saginaw, Texas 
333 West McLeroy 
Saginaw, Texas 76179 

Dear City Council Members and City Management: 
 
You have requested that Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P (“Weaver”, “our”, “us”, and “we”) audit the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Saginaw, 
Texas (the “City”), as of September 30, 2025, and for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. In 
addition, we will audit the City’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period ended  
September 30, 2025. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) require that management’s discussion and analysis and 
budgetary comparison information, among other items, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by GASB, which considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information (“RSI”) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAS”). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their 
methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following 
RSI is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
2. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund 
3. Schedule of Changes in Net Position Liability and Related Ratios 
4. Schedule of Pension Contributions  
5. Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

 
Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the City’s basic financial statements. We will subject the 
following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial 
statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the supplementary 
information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS. We intend to 
provide an opinion on the following supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as applicable 
2. Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules  

 
Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that will not be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements: 

1. Introductory Section  



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 2 of 11 

2. Statistical Section 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this engagement by means of this letter. 

Applicable Standards and Framework 
The auditing standards applicable to this engagement will be U.S. GAAS (generally accepted auditing standards in 
the United States of America) and, if applicable, the Government Auditing Standards (“GAGAS”), any state or 
regulatory audit requirements, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). 

The financial reporting framework applicable to this engagement is U.S. GAAP (generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America). 

Engagement Objectives 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion and to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to above when considered in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with applicable auditing standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the financial statements.  

Our Responsibilities 
We will conduct our engagement in accordance with the applicable standards described above. As part of an 
engagement conducted in accordance with the applicable standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the engagement. 

We also do the following: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of controls. 

 Obtain an understanding of the system of internal control in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit that we have identified during 
the engagement. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 3 of 11 

If appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that support the transactions 
recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of assets, and direct confirmation of cash, investments, and 
certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with creditors and financial institutions. As part of our audit 
process, we may request written representations from your attorneys, and they may bill you for responding. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some material 
misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of 
assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations) may exist and not be detected, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with applicable standards. 

In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the 
appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets 
that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. 

The accompanying supplementary information referred to above will be presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information will be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
applicable standards. Our auditor’s report will provide an opinion on the supplementary information in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are limited to the period covered by our engagement and do not extend 
to any other periods. 

Jennifer Ripka is the engagement partner for the attest services specified in this letter and is responsible for 
supervising our services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm 
representative to sign our report. 

We expect to begin our procedures in July 2025, and issue our report in January 2026. We will issue a written report 
only upon completion of our engagement. Our report will be addressed to City Council and Management of the 
City. 

We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified audit opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which 
it may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs, delay the 
initiation or completion of our engagement, or withdraw from the engagement. If our opinion on the financial 
statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. 

If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we 
may decline to express an opinion or withdraw from the engagement. 

GAGAS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will consider the entity’s internal control over financial reporting and perform tests of the entity’s compliance 
with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 

In accordance with the requirements of GAGAS, we will also issue a written report describing the scope of our testing 
over internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 4 of 11 

grant agreements, including the results of that testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be 
expressed. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect 
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Uniform Guidance 

Our audit of the entity’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance (including the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs). 

Our procedures will include tests of accounting records and a determination of major federal award programs in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance. We will also perform other procedures we consider necessary to enable us 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the entity complied with applicable laws, regulations, and provisions 
of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs, so that we may express an opinion 
or disclaimer of opinion on major federal award program compliance and render the required reports. We cannot 
provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which 
it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or withdraw from the engagement. 

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with 
compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award programs. Our report will include 
any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified. However, our tests will be less in scope than would 
be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report. 

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

U.S. GAAP, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), requires that management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, among other items, be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by GASB, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain 
limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with U.S. GAAS. These limited procedures will consist primarily of 
inquiries of management regarding their methods of measurement and presentation and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide 
any form of assurance on the RSI. 

Non-Attest Services 
We will perform this additional non-attest (non-audit services) as part of this engagement. 

 Preparation of financial statements and related notes 

 Preparation of schedule of expenditures of federal awards (as applicable) 

 Assisting with entries to convert accounting records from modified accrual to full accrual (GASB 34 entries) 

 Prepare the Data Collection Form (as applicable) 

GAGAS require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and experience of management, should 
we participate in any form of preparation of the financial statements and related schedules or disclosures as these 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 5 of 11 

actions are deemed a non-attest service. The entity has designated Kim Quin, Finance Director to oversee these 
services. 

These non-attest services do not constitute an audit under GAGAS and such services will not be conducted in 
accordance with GAGAS. 

Third-Party Service Providers 
Depending on the requirements of this engagement, we may use the services of our affiliate, Weaver and Tidwell 
India LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in India, or one or more other third-party service providers to 
assist us. Before sharing confidential information with those service providers, we will (i) secure agreements to 
maintain the confidentiality of confidential information and ensure the confidential information is only used for the 
purpose of assisting us with the performance of this engagement and (ii) take commercially reasonable precautions 
to determine the service providers have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized disclosure of 
confidential information. If we use such service providers, we will remain responsible for all work performed and any 
breach of our confidentiality arrangements by those service providers. 

Management’s Responsibilities 
Our engagement will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility for: 

a. the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial 
reporting framework described above; 

b. the design, implementation, and maintenance of the system of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error; 

c. the design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud; 

d. informing us of any known or suspected fraud involving management, employees with significant roles in 
the system of internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements (including any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud received in communications from 
employees, former employees, regulators, or others); 

e. providing us with: 

i. access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, such as records, documentation, 
and other matters; 

ii. additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the engagement; 
and 

iii. unrestricted access to persons from whom we determine it necessary to obtain evidence; 

f. including our report, and our report on any supplementary information if described above, in any document 
containing financial statements that indicates that such financial statements have been audited by us; 

g. identifying and ensuring compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to activities; 

h. adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the 
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the current period(s) under audit are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole; 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 6 of 11 

i. maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding assets; 

j. the accuracy and completeness of all information provided; 

k. with regard to the supplementary information referred to above: (a) the preparation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with the applicable criteria; (b) providing us with the appropriate written 
representations regarding supplementary information; (c) including our report on the supplementary 
information in any document that contains the supplementary information and that indicates that we have 
reported on such supplementary information; and (d) presenting the supplementary information with the 
audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information will not be presented with the audited 
financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and 
our report thereon; 

l. the design, implementation, and maintenance of the system of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; 

m. identifying all federal awards expended during the period including federal awards and funding increments 
received prior to December 26, 2014, and those received in accordance with the Uniform Guidance generally 
received after December 26, 2014; 

n. providing us with access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to federal award 
programs; 

o. preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance received) 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 

p. the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over compliance; 

q. identifying and ensuring that entity complies with laws, regulations, grants, and contracts applicable to its 
activities and its federal award programs; 

r. following up and taking corrective action on reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a 
summary schedule of prior audit findings; 

s. following up and taking corrective action on current period audit findings and preparing a corrective action 
plan for such findings; 

t. submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties; 

u. making us aware of any significant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for program 
compliance; 

v. informing us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware during the 
period from the date of our report to the date the financial statements are issued; and 

w. confirming your understanding of your responsibilities in this letter to us in your management 
representation letter. 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or 
support for any other transactions we request. 

If we agree herein or otherwise to perform any non-attest services (such as tax services or any other non-attest 
services), you agree to assume all management responsibilities for those services; oversee the services by 
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 7 of 11 

evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them. We will perform any such non-
attest services in accordance with applicable professional standards. 

During the course of our engagement, we will request information and explanations from management regarding 
operations, internal controls, future plans, specific transactions and accounting systems and procedures. At the 
conclusion of our engagement, we will also require, as a precondition to the issuance of our report, that 
management provide certain representations in a written letter concerning representations made to us in 
connection with our engagement. You agree that as a condition of our engagement, management will, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, be truthful, accurate and complete in all representations made to us during the course 
of the engagement and in the written representation letter. The procedures we perform in our engagement and the 
conclusions we reach as a basis for our report will be heavily influenced by the written and oral representations that 
we receive from management. False or misleading representations could cause us to expend unnecessary efforts in 
the engagement; or, worse, could cause a material error or a fraud to go undetected by our procedures. 

Fees and Invoicing 
We estimate the fee for this engagement will be $56,500 for the financial statement audit and $6,000 for the single 
audit, as applicable. The total fee for our services will be determined by the complexity of the work performed and 
the tasks required. Individual hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the skills 
required. It is understood that neither our fees nor the payment thereof will be contingent upon the results of this 
engagement. 

Our fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from all involved and the assumption that unexpected 
circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. Our fee estimate does not contemplate our 
consultation with you on the adoption of new accounting standards or any future increased duties we may have 
because of the actions of any regulatory body, implementation of any new auditing standard, or occurrence of an 
unknown or unplanned significant transaction. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss the reasons 
with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Our invoices are payable on presentation and will be rendered (generally monthly) as work progresses. 

Documentation and Deliverable 
The documentation we prepare pertaining to and in support of this engagement is our property and constitutes 
confidential information. 

If you intend to make reference to our firm or include a report or portion of a report we issue in a published 
document or other reproduction that includes a modified version of the report or financial information to which it 
was attached, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before 
reproducing. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our written approval 
before it is distributed. If, in our professional judgment, the circumstances require, we may withhold our approval. 
This requirement does not pertain to distributing unmodified reports along with the attached financial information 
or dissemination of your financial information as a standalone document, such as on your website. 

Unless we provide you with written consent in advance of such use, reports we issue are not intended to and should 
not be provided or otherwise made available for use in connection with the sale of debt or other securities. If, in our 
professional judgment, the circumstances require, we may withhold our consent. 

Consistent with professional standards, our firm is subject to peer review and inspection by the PCAOB. Those 
programs require that our system of quality management and a sample of our work be periodically examined by 
another independent accounting firm or the PCAOB, respectively. A copy of our latest external peer review report 
is available at peerreview.aicpa.org. The work we perform for you may be selected for review. If it is, we will provide 



January 15, 2025 

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. | Page 8 of 11 

the reviewers with the required information without notice to you. Professional standards and PCAOB regulations 
provide the applicable confidentiality requirements.  

Incorporated General Terms 
Attached are our General Terms that provide additional terms (including but not limited to provisions on 
confidentiality, limitations on liability, indemnifications, dispute resolution, jury waiver, etc.) for this engagement. 
Those terms are incorporated and apply to all services described herein. 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist you and look forward to working with you and your team. 

Sincerely, 

 
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P. 
Dallas, Texas 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter to indicate acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the arrangements 
for our engagement as described herein, including each party’s respective responsibilities. By signing below, the 
signatory also represents that they have been authorized to execute this agreement. 

City of Saginaw, Texas 

By:   

Printed Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

 

 



 

General Terms (Rev. 24.12.10) | Page 1 of 3 

GENERAL TERMS
1. Expenses. 
In addition to the fee for our services, reasonable and 
necessary out-of-pocket expenses we incur (such as parking, 
reproduction and printing, postage and delivery, and out-
of-market travel, meals, and accommodations) will be 
invoiced at cost. The total amount stated on each invoice 
will include a separate administrative and technology 
charge. The charge represents an estimated allocation of 
our support personnel, telecommunication, and technology 
infrastructure expenses. The amount stated on each invoice 
will also include any sales, use, gross receipts, excise, or 
other transaction tax imposed on our fees or expenses. 
2. Payment. 
Any disagreement with the charges must be communicated 
to us in writing within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, 
after which any right to contest the invoices will be waived. 
For invoices not paid within sixty (60) days of the invoice 
date, a late charge will be added to any uncontested 
outstanding balance. The late charge will be assessed at a 
rate of half a percent (0.5%) of the unpaid balance per 
month. If invoices are not paid within ninety (90) days of the 
invoice date, this engagement (and any other engagements 
for the same party) will be placed on hold and we will stop 
work until the balance is brought current, or we may 
withdraw, and we will not be liable for any damages that 
may result. 
3. Term. 

A. This engagement ends at the earlier of the completion 
of our services described above, the provision of any 
deliverables described above, or the termination of this 
engagement. Any party may earlier terminate this 
engagement at any time with ten (10) days’ written notice 
to the other party. If the engagement is terminated, our 
engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon 
written notification of termination, and we will be paid for 
our time expended and expenses incurred through the date 
of termination. 

B. If we are requested to perform additional services not 
addressed in this engagement letter, we will communicate 
our ability to perform the services, the scope of additional 
services we agree to perform, and the fee arrangements we 
would use. We also may issue a separate engagement letter 
covering the additional services. In the absence of any other 
written communication from us documenting the 
arrangement for performance of such additional services, 
those services will continue to be governed by the terms of 
this engagement letter. 
4. Ethical Conflict Resolution. 
In the unlikely event that circumstances occur which we in 
our sole discretion believe could create a conflict with either 

the ethical standards of our firm or the ethical standards of 
our profession in continuing our engagement, we may 
suspend our services until a satisfactory resolution can be 
achieved or we may resign from the engagement. We will 
provide notice of such conflict as soon as practicable and 
discuss any possible means of resolving the conflict prior to 
suspending our services. 
5. Non-Solicitation of Our Staff. 
We value every one of our partners, employees, and 
contractors and have spent a great deal of time and 
resources to locate, train, and retain those individuals. 
Accordingly, during the term of this engagement letter and 
for two (2) years after the later of the termination of this 
engagement letter or conclusion of the performance of all 
of our services performed hereunder, no party, whether 
voluntarily or involuntarily, directly or indirectly, will solicit 
to employ or engage, on a partner, employee, contractor, or 
other basis, any of our partners, employees, or contractors 
who perform these services, without obtaining the prior 
written consent of our CEO or COO. 
6. Confidentiality. 

A. During the course of this engagement, the parties 
may disclose to each other, orally, in writing, or otherwise, 
information that is identified as or which is otherwise 
categorized by law as proprietary, confidential, or privileged 
(“Confidential Information”). Confidential Information does 
not include material which (i) is in the public domain 
through no fault of the receiving party, (ii) was already 
known to the receiving party before it was first disclosed to 
the receiving party by or on behalf of the disclosing party 
related to this engagement, (iii) is received by the receiving 
party from third-parties without confidentiality restrictions, 
unless those third-parties were acting for or on behalf of the 
disclosing party related to this engagement, or (iv) is 
developed by the receiving party independently of, and 
without reference to, any Confidential Information 
communicated to the receiving party by or on behalf of the 
disclosing party. We will use the Confidential Information 
disclosed to us during this engagement solely to perform 
services for which we have been engaged. 

B. We may be requested to make the Confidential 
Information available to regulators and other government 
agencies, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation. 
Responding to many such requests is mandatory. In those 
cases, access to such Confidential Information will be 
provided under our supervision and we may, upon their 
request, provide the regulator or agency with copies of all 
or selected portions of the Confidential Information. The 
requesting party may intend or decide to distribute the 



 

General Terms (Rev. 24.12.10) | Page 2 of 3 

copies or information contained therein to others, including 
other regulators or agencies. 

C. Unless otherwise stated herein, prohibited by law or 
direction of law enforcement, or agreed in writing, the 
parties will (i) provide prompt notice of any request received 
to make Confidential Information pertaining to this 
engagement, including any of our work product, available 
to outside parties not involved in the performance of these 
services and (ii) obtain written consent from the affected 
party before disclosing the Confidential Information in 
response to the request. If consent is withheld, the parties 
will cooperate with any lawful efforts taken to minimize the 
disclosure or protect the Confidential Information. 

D. We will invoice for reasonable and necessary time and 
out-of-pocket expenses we incur to respond to any request 
(such as a subpoena, summons, court order, or 
administrative investigative demand) pertaining to this 
engagement in a legal matter to which we are not a party. 
Our time to facilitate the response will be charged at our 
then-current standard hourly rates, our expenses (including 
attorney’s fees) will be invoiced at cost, and our 
administrative and technology charge will be applied. If we 
agree to perform additional substantive services related to 
or arising out of the request, such matters may be the 
subject of a new engagement letter. 

E. The parties agree to maintain Confidential 
Information using the same standard of care each uses to 
protect its own information of like importance but in no case 
less than a reasonable standard of care. 

F. All rights to Confidential Information (including 
patent, trademarks, copyrights, or other intellectual 
property rights) shall remain vested in the disclosing party, 
and no rights in the Confidential Information are vested in 
the receiving party, except the limited right to use the 
Confidential Information solely to perform its obligations or 
exercise its rights under this engagement letter. 

G. We will return or destroy the Confidential Information 
upon the disclosing party’s request within a reasonable 
period of time, except that we will maintain any copies of 
the Confidential Information for the period necessary to 
comply with any applicable laws or professional standards 
and our own document retention policy (e.g. we will 
maintain our workpapers for seven (7) years from the date 
of any attest report we issue). Following such a period, we 
may destroy the Confidential Information without notice. 

H. We may at times provide (i) documents marked as 
drafts or (ii) preliminary or ancillary information or advice 
(not included in a final deliverable). Those documents, 
information, and/or advice are for review and consideration 
purposes only and should not be relied upon or distributed, 
and should be destroyed, unless otherwise required by law. 

If further analysis, information, or advice is desired, we will 
be informed in writing. We may assist if the matter is within 
our expertise. Unless already encompassed by the scope of 
our engagement letter, if we agree to provide such further 
assistance, our services will be handled as additional services 
in the manner described above. 

I. We may transmit and store data via email, the cloud, 
or other electronic and Internet-based mechanisms to 
facilitate this engagement. Please be aware that those 
mediums inherently pose a risk of misdirection or 
interception of Confidential Information. Any request to 
limit such transmissions or use a different means of 
transmission or storage must be made in writing and we will 
not be responsible for any resulting compromise in data 
security. 

J. We do not act as the host or repository of financial or 
non-financial information or as an information back-up 
service provider for our clients. It is the responsibility of our 
clients to maintain a complete set of their own financial and 
non-financial data and records. If some portion of the data 
and records is contained only within our files, inform us 
before the issuance of our deliverable and we will provide a 
copy. 

K. Unless otherwise stated herein or agreed in writing, 
neither this engagement nor engagement letter is intended 
for the benefit of any third party. Any party may inform us 
of any third party who will receive our deliverable. If we are 
not informed in writing by a party, we are not aware of the 
identity of such third parties and we do not anticipate their 
reliance upon our professional services or deliverable unless 
otherwise agreed in writing. 
7. Limitations on Liability and Indemnifications. 

A. Each party to this engagement letter other than us 
gives the following releases and indemnifications to us and 
our affiliates’ partners, employees, and contractors, and 
each of their heirs, executors, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns (“Our Representatives”). We and Our 
Representatives are hereby released, indemnified, and held 
harmless, from and against any liability and costs, including 
related liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, and 
attorneys’ fees, resulting from or arising out of: (i) knowing 
misrepresentations or unintentional or unauthorized 
disclosures to us or Our Representatives by any party (other 
than us) or the officers, employees, or others acting or 
purporting to act on their behalf, (ii) disclosure of our work 
product to anyone not a party this engagement letter who 
we were not informed of in advance, or (iii) misdirection, 
interception, or failed delivery of information connected 
with this engagement during transmission, submission, or 
storage. 



 

General Terms (Rev. 24.12.10) | Page 3 of 3 

B. Our and Our Representatives’ total aggregate liability 
pertaining to this engagement and engagement letter shall 
be limited to one (1) times the amount of our fees 
(excluding any reimbursable expenses) the party bringing 
the claim paid to us for the services in question. In no event 
shall we or Our Representatives be liable for indirect, 
incidental, consequential, special, multiple, exemplary, or 
punitive losses or damages—even if advised of their 
possible existence. 

C. Satisfaction of a claim or cause of action arising from 
nonattest services (if any) which are part of this engagement 
or performed pursuant to this engagement letter shall only 
be sought from the limited liability partnership, Weaver and 
Tidwell, L.L.P. In no event will our partners, directors, 
employees, or agents be individually liable for any liability, 
damages, expenses, or losses of any nature, caused by or 
resulting from the engagement, engagement letter, or use 
of our work product. While we are entering into this 
engagement letter on our own behalf, this paragraph is also 
intended for the benefit of Our Representatives. 

D. All limitations on liability and indemnifications 
contained herein shall apply to the fullest extent permissible 
by applicable laws and professional standards (including, 
without limitation, any applicable rules and interpretations 
of the AICPA, PCAOB, and SEC), regardless of the cause of 
action (whether contract, negligence, or otherwise), except 
as finally determined to have resulted solely from our fraud, 
gross negligence, or willful misconduct. 
8. Dispute Resolution Procedure including Jury 

Waiver. 
A. No claim arising out of or relating to this engagement 

or engagement letter shall be filed more than two (2) years 
after the earlier of the termination of this engagement or 
the date of the delivery of our work product in question, if 
any. This limitation applies and begins to run even if no 
damage or loss has been suffered, or the injured or 
damaged party has not become aware of the existence or 
possible existence of a dispute. 

B. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this engagement 
or engagement letter, or the breach thereof, and if the 
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties 
agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation before resorting to litigation. In such event, the 
parties will attempt to agree upon a location, mediator, and 
mediation procedures, but absent such agreement any party 
may require mediation in Houston, Texas, administered by 
the AAA under its Commercial Mediation Procedures. 

C. This engagement letter and all disputes between the 
parties shall be governed by, resolved, and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without 
regard to conflict-of-law principles. Any action arising out of 

or relating to this engagement or engagement letter shall 
only be brought in, and each party agrees to submit and 
consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal or state 
courts in the State of Texas and convenience of those 
situated in Harris County, Texas. 

D. Each party hereby irrevocably waives any right it may 
have to trial by jury in any proceeding arising out of or 
relating to this engagement or this engagement letter. 

E. Whenever possible, this engagement letter shall be 
interpreted in such a manner as to be effective and valid 
under applicable laws, regulations, or published 
interpretation, but if any term of this engagement letter is 
declared illegal, unenforceable, or unconscionable, that 
term shall be severed or modified, and the remaining terms 
of the engagement letter shall remain in force. The court 
should in such case modify any term declared to be illegal, 
unenforceable, or unconscionable in a manner that will 
retain the intended term as closely as possible. 

F. If because of a change in status or due to any other 
reason, any of the terms of this engagement or any contract 
we have now or enter into in the future with any of the other 
parties, would be prohibited by, or would impair our 
independence when required under laws, regulations or 
published interpretations by governmental bodies, 
professional organizations or other regulatory agencies, 
such provision shall, to that extent, be of no further force 
and effect and the contract shall consist of the remaining 
portions. 
9. Miscellaneous. 

A. We have non-CPA owners who may provide services 
pertaining to this engagement. 

B. We do not provide legal advice or services. If 
necessary, refer to appropriate legal counsel for advice or 
services of that nature. 

C. This engagement letter sets forth all agreed upon 
terms and conditions of our engagement with respect to the 
matters covered herein and supersedes any that may have 
come before. This engagement letter may not be amended 
or modified except by further writing signed by all the 
parties. Any provisions of this engagement letter which 
expressly or by implication are intended to survive its 
termination or expiration will survive and continue to bind 
the parties. The use of electronic signatures or multiple 
counterparts to execute this engagement letter shall have 
the same force and effect as a manually or physically signed 
original instrument. 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Report on Firm’s System of Quality Control 
 
 
September 19, 2022 
 
 
To the Partners of Weaver & Tidwell, L.L.P. 
and the National Peer Review Committee 
 
 
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Weaver & Tidwell, 
L.L.P. (the firm) applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the year 
ended May 31, 2022. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and 
Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (Standards). 
 
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a system review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an 
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 
 
Firm’s Responsibility 
 
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all 
material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements 
deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for 
remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any. 
 
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the firm’s system of quality 
control based on our review. 
 
Required Selections and Considerations 
 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; audits of employee benefit plans, an audit performed 
under FDICIA, and examinations of service organizations [SOC 1 and SOC 2 engagements].)  
 
As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 



 

 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Weaver & Tidwell, L.L.P. 
applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the year ended May 31, 
2022, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of 
performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can 
receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Weaver & Tidwell, L.L.P. has received a peer review 
rating of pass. 
 

 
 
Eide Bailly LLP 
 
 
` 



City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

B. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Presentation Award--Kim
Quin, Finance Director

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Proclamations-Presentations Item: 3B.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

This item is for presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award.  This award represents a significant achievement of the City.  It reflects the commitment of the
City Council and staff to meeting the highest principles of governmental budgeting.  In order to achieve the award
the budget document must meet fourteen mandatory criteria showing the document to be a policy document, a
financial plan, an operations guide, and a communication device. 

In addition to the award the document was awarded special recognition for the performance measures sections. 

This year's award is due to the hard work and dedication of Elizabeth Thorp, Finance Manager.  It is the first time
that GFOA has given special recognition to the document for the performance measures.   

This is the 38th year that the City of Saginaw has received this award. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

 

RECOMMENDATION:

N/A

 

Attachments

GFOA Press Release.pdf
GFOA Award.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Press%20Release.pdf?alt=media&token=ecf7c599-ef81-4581-a048-6f18c8df53da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Press%20Release.pdf?alt=media&token=ecf7c599-ef81-4581-a048-6f18c8df53da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Press%20Release.pdf?alt=media&token=ecf7c599-ef81-4581-a048-6f18c8df53da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=d6c7ebfd-90bc-4358-a83a-a3b59061115d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=d6c7ebfd-90bc-4358-a83a-a3b59061115d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F678931ab90248a0054873c68%2FGFOA%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=d6c7ebfd-90bc-4358-a83a-a3b59061115d






City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

C. Presentation of Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024--
Jennifer Ripka, Weaver & Tidwell LLP

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Proclamations-Presentations Item: 3C.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At the end of each fiscal year, the financial transactions of the City are reviewed by external auditors.  The objective
of the audit is to express an opinion as to whether the basic financial statements are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, are free from material misstatement, and to
report on the fairness of supplementary information when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.  The audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as, the overall presentation of
the financial statements. 

Jennifer Ripka, a partner with Weaver and Tidwell, LLP will present the report.

A hard copy of the report will be distributed at the City Council meeting.  If the report is available before the
meeting, an electronic copy will be distributed.

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

 

RECOMMENDATION:

This item is informational only.  There is no action required.

 

 



City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

A. Consideration and Action Regarding 2025 Bond Committee Project Recommendation--Lee Howell, Asst. City
Manager

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Business Item: 4A.

Reference File

Community Goals

The 2025 Bond Committee met in a series of meetings from November 12, 2024 to January 6, 2025. Staff
presented details of potential projects. Committee members received an overview of projects from staff and
Kimley Horn.  Finance Director Kim Quin presented on debt capacity and tax rates. Tours were scheduled of the
North Richland Hills, Hurst, and Fort Worth North Animal Campus shelters. Committee Members were able to ask
questions and discuss priorities. In the final meeting, the Committee was tasked with ranking the projects by
numerical score, in order of importance to the community, 1 to 20, and the numbers were totaled. 

The attached document "Bond Committee Projects Ranking" reflects the overall Committee ranking. Estimated
project costs for streets and parks projects were calculated by Kimley Horn. The new animal shelter cost is from
the Animal Shelter Needs Assessment by Animal Arts, with an inflation factor. Some other projects have been
updated by City Engineer Trent Tidwell, to include an inflation factor. It should be noted that inflation factors can
vary the total cost of projects dependent on the timing of the schedule. Eleven of the 14 appointees submitted
ranking scores. Of those, only one member did not rank the animal shelter project as #1. 

Appointed Members of the Committee are:

Judy Deller, Carmen Drake, Lena Goff, Amanda Harper, David Jones, Stacy Liebel, Spencer Meara, Ronda Petty
Nyberg, John Peet, Clayton Ray, Rick Russell, Marilyn Tolbert, Adhel Torres, Thomas Weaver. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Bond Committee Projects Ranking .pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67857fcc90248a00548173ab%2FBond%20Committee%20Projects%20Ranking%20.pdf?alt=media&token=82f31e9a-6f73-45c1-b03d-74d3458b5600
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67857fcc90248a00548173ab%2FBond%20Committee%20Projects%20Ranking%20.pdf?alt=media&token=82f31e9a-6f73-45c1-b03d-74d3458b5600
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67857fcc90248a00548173ab%2FBond%20Committee%20Projects%20Ranking%20.pdf?alt=media&token=82f31e9a-6f73-45c1-b03d-74d3458b5600


Project Name Project Cost Project Type Rank Score Notes

Animal Shelter $18,500,000 Facility 1 10

McLeroy Phase 2a - Main Street to Spring Hollow $10,329,280 Streets #1 2 60 Excludes design

William Houston Park - Playground $2,408,291 Parks 3 67 Parks Board #2

William Houston Park - Baseball Field & Parking $5,152,959 Parks 4 72 Parks Board #1

Industrial Phase 1 - Blue Mound to RR $6,010,892 Streets #2 5 85

McLeroy Phase 2b - Spring Hollow to Lavonne $10,800,000 Streets #3 6 91

Industrial Phase 2 - RR to Ardent Mills $5,317,892 Streets #4 7 95

Old Decatur (Sherwood to Longhorn) $1,240,000 Sidewalk #1 8 95

Park Center Blvd Maintenance $1,980,000 Streets #5 9 103

Palomino (Thompson to Saginaw Boulevard) $350,000 Sidewalk #2 10 104

Willow Creek Park - Dog Park $1,190,880 Parks 11 106 Parks Board #3

McLeroy Phase 4 - Old Decatur to Willow Creek Park $7,000,000 Streets #6 12 107

Opal St Maintenance $3,399,600 Streets #7 13 118 Includes utilities

Highland Station Park - Dog Park, Pickleball and Basketball $3,660,000 Parks 14 119 Parks Board #4

Willow Creek Park - Pickleball Court, Parking, and Playground $3,400,000 Parks 15 122 Parks Board #5

Basswood (Blue Mound to Whistle Stop) $700,000 Sidewalk #3 16 131

Basswood Intersections - High Country and Grand Central $4,100,000 Streets #8 17 144

East Pond 3,000,000 Parks 18 145

Basswood Corridor (Reduce from 6 lanes to 4 lanes) $3,300,000 Streets #9 19 158

Highland Station Park - Western Trail $710,000 Parks 20 161 Parks Board #6

$92,549,794



City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

B. Consideration and Action regarding Resolution No. 2025-01, Calling a General Election to Elect the Offices of
City Council Place 1, City Council Place 3, and City Council Place 5 to be held on May 3, 2025--Janice England,
City Secretary

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Business Item: 4B.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Resolution No. 2025-01 calls the City's General Election to elect the offices of City Council Place 1, City Council
Place 3, and City Council Place 5 to be held on Saturday, May 3, 2025, and if required, a Run-Off Election to be held
on June 7, 2025.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2025-01.  

 

Attachments

El Resolution Call 2025.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67869e6a90248a005482db5b%2FEl%20Resolution%20Call%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=4a648f5e-75d8-4314-8435-f59656753595
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67869e6a90248a005482db5b%2FEl%20Resolution%20Call%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=4a648f5e-75d8-4314-8435-f59656753595
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F67869e6a90248a005482db5b%2FEl%20Resolution%20Call%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=4a648f5e-75d8-4314-8435-f59656753595


 
 Page 1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAGINAW, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING 
AND CALLING FOR A GENERAL ELECTION TO ELECT THE OFFICES 
OF CITY COUNCIL PLACE 1, CITY COUNCIL PLACE 3, AND CITY 
COUNCIL PLACE 5 TO BE HELD ON MAY 3, 2025, AND, IF 
REQUIRED, A RUN-OFF ELECTION ON JUNE 7, 2025; APPROVING A 
JOINT ELECTION WITH TARRANT COUNTY; AND ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES FOR THAT ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Saginaw, Texas, (the “City”) is a home rule city acting 

under its charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas 

Constitution and Chapter 9 of the Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, Section 41.001 of the Texas Election Code (the “Code”) specifies 

that the first Saturday in May shall be a “uniform election date” and that a general 

election of a city may be held on that day; and 

WHEREAS, the regular election for City Council members of the City is required 

to be held on May 3, 2025, at which time the voters will elect persons to fill the offices of 

City Council Place 1, City Council Place 3, and City Council Place 5; and 

WHEREAS, it is the City Council’s intent that the election will be held as a joint 

election, conducted under the authority of Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code 

(“Code”); and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to enter into a 

Joint Election Agreement with Tarrant County (the “Agreement”) to provide the most 

efficient and convenient voting opportunities; and 

WHEREAS, by this Resolution, it is the intention of the City Council to designate 

a polling place for the election, to appoint the necessary election officers to establish 

and set forth procedures for conducting the election, and authorize the Mayor to 

execute a contract with Tarrant County for conducting the election.  



 
 Page 2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SAGINAW, TEXAS, THAT:  

Section 1. Incorporation. The facts and recitations contained in the above preamble 

of this Resolution are incorporated herein for all purposes. 

Section 2. General Election Called.  An election is hereby called to elect the offices 

of City Council Place 1, City Council Place 3, and City Council Place 5 to serve from 

May of 2025 until May of 2028 or until their successors are duly elected and qualified.  

The election shall be held on May 3, 2025 at the location(s) designated in the Joint 

Election Agreement between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. 

Section 3. Joint Election Agreement Approved. The Mayor is authorized to 

execute the Joint Election Agreement for Tarrant County and the City of Saginaw (the 

“Agreement”) in accordance with Chapter 31, Subchapter D of the Code, and any other 

applicable statutes and laws.  In the event of conflict between this Resolution and the 

Agreement, the Agreement shall control. 

Section 4. Application for Place on Ballot. Qualified persons may file as 

candidates by filing applications in the office of the City Secretary from 7:30 a.m. to 5:30 

p.m., Monday through Thursday, from January 15, 2025 through February 13, 2025; 

and 7:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m., on Fridays, January 17, January 24, and January 31, 2025 

and February 7, 2025; from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 14, 2025. 

Section 5. Early Voting. 

 a. Early voting clerk. The Tarrant County Elections Administrator 

(“Elections Administrator”), or their successor, is hereby designated as Early Voting 

Clerk for the special election.  Additional Deputy Early Voting Clerks may be appointed, 

as provided in the Agreement.   



 
 Page 3 

b. Early voting by personal appearance. Early voting by personal 

appearance shall commence April 22, 2025 and shall continue daily, until April 29, 2025 

at the locations designated in the Agreement for joint election. Hours for early voting by 

personal appearance shall be from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., from April 22, 2025 through 

April 25, 2025; from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on each of April 26, 2025, April 28, 2025, 

and April 29, 2025; and from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on April 27, 2025.  

c. Early voting by mail. Clint Ludwig, the Tarrant County Elections 

Administrator (“Elections Administrator”) or his successor is hereby designated as Early 

Voting Clerk for the general election. Applications for early voting by mail may be 

delivered to the Elections Administrator or his successor at the following address: P.O. 

Box 961011, 2700 Premier Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76161, FAX: 817-850-2344, 

Email: votebymail@tarrantcounty.com, not later than close of business on April 22, 

2025.  Early voting by mail ballots shall be mailed to the Elections Administrator or his 

successor at P.O. Box 961011, Fort Worth, Texas 76161-0011.  

d. Early voting by Ballot Board.  Early voting, both by personal appearance 

and by mail, shall be canvassed by the Early Voting Ballot Board established by Tarrant 

County under the terms of the Agreement. 

e. Recommended Branch Early Voting Polling Places.  The Council finds 

that the following locations can most adequately and conveniently serve the voters in 

this election, and that these early voting locations will facilitate the orderly conduct of the 

election: 

1. Blue Mound Community Center  
 1824 Fagan Drive, Blue Mound, Texas 76131 
 
2. Tarrant County Elections Center  
 2700 Premier Street, Fort Worth, Texas, 76111 
 

 

mailto:votebymail@tarrantcounty.com


 
 Page 4 

Section 6. Appointment of Election Judge and Alternate Election Judge. The 

Presiding Election Judge and Alternate Presiding Judge shall be appointed by Tarrant 

County as authorized by Chapter 271 of the Code.  

Section 7. Method of Voting.  Tarrant County’s voting system shall be used for 

absentee voting by mail; early voting by personal appearance; regular voting on election 

day and provisional voting.  All expenditures necessary for the conduct of the election, 

the purchase of materials therefore, and the employment of all election officials are 

hereby authorized, and shall be conducted in accordance with the Code.  

Section 8. Governing Law and Qualified Voters.  The election shall be held in 

accordance with the Constitution of the State of Texas and the Code, and all resident 

qualified voters of the City shall be eligible to vote at the election. 

Section 9. Publication and Posting of Notice of Election.  Notice of the election 

shall be given as required by Chapter 4 of the Code. 

Section 10. Necessary Actions.  The Mayor and the City Secretary of the City, in 

consultation with the City Attorney, are hereby authorized and directed to take any and 

all actions necessary to comply with the provisions of the Code in carrying out and 

conducting the election, whether or not expressly authorized herein. 

Section 11.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.  

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 21st day of January, 2025.  

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 

___________________________           ___________________________ 
Janice England, City Secretary                Todd Flippo, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
___________________________ 
Bryn Meredith, City Attorney 



City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

C. Consideration and Action regarding Resolution No. 2025-02, Amending the Code of Conduct and Rules of
Procedure for City Council Meetings by Adopting New Policies Governing the Right of the Public to Request an
Agenda Item and Governing the Right to Speak to the Council via a Designated Group Representative;
Promulgating Guidelines and Recommendations for addressing the City Council--Paul Felegy, Mayor Pro-Tem;
Brack St. Clair, Councilmember; & Cindy Bighorse, Councilmember

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Business Item: 4C.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Resolution No. 2025-02 amends the Code of Conduct and Rules of Procedure for City Council Meeting by adopting
new policies governing the right of the public to request an agenda item and governing the right to speak to the
Council via a designated group representative; promulgating guidelines and recommendations for addressing the
City Council. 

A subcommittee consisting of Mayor Pro-Tem Felegy, Councilmember St. Clair, and Councilmember Bighorse was
formed following the October 1, 2024 City Council Meeting to review the items mentioned above and make a
recommendation to the City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

 

RECOMMENDATION:

The subcommittee recommends approval. 

 

Attachments

Resolution 2025-02 with exhibits.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6786966490248a005482c9c5%2FResolution%202025-02%20with%20exhibits.pdf?alt=media&token=19ba5819-7c98-4f03-bd73-3716c5877272
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6786966490248a005482c9c5%2FResolution%202025-02%20with%20exhibits.pdf?alt=media&token=19ba5819-7c98-4f03-bd73-3716c5877272
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/saginawtx%2Factions%2F6786966490248a005482c9c5%2FResolution%202025-02%20with%20exhibits.pdf?alt=media&token=19ba5819-7c98-4f03-bd73-3716c5877272




































City of Saginaw

City Council Memorandum

D. Discussion of 2025 Work Plan Projects--Gabe Reaume, City Manager

Meeting

Tuesday, January 21, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Business Item: 4D.

Reference File

Community Goals

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The adoption of a work plan project list has been a successful way to establish priorities for the coming year. 

A project should be important to the majority of the City Council and also something that we can make a realistic
amount of progress or complete within a given year. 

The list below are project ideas that have come from City Councilmembers.

-Creation of a Community Garden Committee/Relocation of the garden

-Future relocation of Depot Building

-Design criteria/standards for carports

-Employee Personnel Manual Update

-2025 Bond (Communication and Informational Awareness)

-Creation of a Community Special Events Committee

-Creation of "Friends of Parks" or other parks-related non-profits

-Decorative Lighting Project (Carryover)

-Old Fire Station Site Redevelopment

-Citywide Tree Assessment (Non profit/Grant-funded)

We would like to solicit the direction and feedback from the City Council in order to adopt a 2025 work plan project
list in February.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A



 

RECOMMENDATION:

N/A

 


	CityCouncil-2025-01-22
	Item 2A. 
	Draft Minutes, January 7 2025
	Item 2B. 
	City of Saginaw 2025 Audit Engagement Letter
	Item 3B. 
	GFOA Press Release
	GFOA Award
	Item 3C. 
	Item 4A. 
	Bond Committee Projects Ranking 
	Item 4B. 
	El Resolution Call 2025
	Item 4C. 
	Resolution 2025-02 with exhibits
	Item 4D. 

